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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

for the

Eastern District of Pennsylvania

United States of America )
v 3 Case No. 26-MJ-329
MAHADY SACKO )
)
)
Defendant(s)
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT

I, the complainant in this case, state that the following is true to the best of my knowledge and belief.

On or about the date(s) of November 5, 2024

Eastern District of Pennsylvania

Code Section
52 U.S.C. § 20511(2)(B)

This criminal complaint is based on these facts:

See attached affidavit,

¥ Continued on the attached sheet.

Sworn to before me and signed by telephone.

Date: 2/27/2026

City and state: Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

in the county of Philadelphia

, the defendant(s) violated:

Offense Description
fraudulent voting

/s/ Mickel McGann

in the

Complainant’s signature

Mickel McGann, Special Agent, FBI

Printed name and title
. Digitally signed by
W Elizabeth T. Hey, U.S.M.J.
Date: 2026,02.27

12:20:46 -05'00'

Judge's signature

Hon Elizabeth T. Hey, USMJ

Printed name and title.
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AFFIDAVIT
1. I, Mickel McGann being first duly sworn, hereby depose and state as follows:
INTRODUCTION AND AGENT BACKGROUND

2. I am a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”) assigned to
the FBI’s Philadelphia Field Office. I have been a Special Agent with the FBI since 2024. 1 have
received training in interviewing and interrogation techniques, arrest procedures, search and
seizure, computer crimes, intellectual property and other white-collar crimes, search warrant
applications, conducting physical surveillance, conducting short- and long-term undercover
operations, consensual monitoring, analyzing telephone and electronic pen register and caller
identification, system data, basic narcotics investigations, drug identification, detection,
interdiction, United States narcotics laws, financial investigations, identification and seizure of
drug related assets, undercover operations, and electronic and physical surveillance procedures at
the Federal Bureau of Investigation Academy in Quantico, VA.

3. In addition to basic law enforcement training, I have also received training in the
following areas: law, investigative techniques, surveillance, tactics, and firearms, the daily work
related to conducting these types of investigations, interviewing and interrogation techniques,
arrest procedures, search and seizure, search warrant applications, conducting physical
surveillance, consensual monitoring, financial investigations, and undercover operations. I am
an “investigative or law enforcement officer” within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 2510; that is, an
officer of the United States of America who is empowered to investigate and make arrests for

offenses alleged in this warrant.
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PURPOSE OF AFFIDAVIT

4. This affidavit is made in support of a criminal complaint and arrest warrant for
MAHADY SACKO for a violation of 52 U.S.C. § 20511(2)(B) (fraudulent voting) in the
November 5, 2024, election for federal office. As described in more detail below, SACKO is not
a U.S. citizen, falsely represented that he was a U.S. citizen, and fraudulently voted in several
federal elections, including specifically the November 5, 2024, election for federal office. Based
on the facts set forth in this affidavit, there is probable cause to believe that MAHADY SACKO
violated 52 U.S.C. § 20511(2)(B).

5. Title 52, United States Code, Section 20511(2)(B) provides that any person who
“knowingly and willfully deprives, defrauds, or attempts to deprive or defraud the residents of a
State of a fair and impartially conducted election process, by . . . casting ballots that are known
by the person to be materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent under the laws of the State in which
the election is held” shall be fined or imprisoned not more than 5 years, or both. Under both
federal and state law, only U.S. citizens are allowed to vote in Pennsylvania. See 18 U.S.C. §
611; Pennsylvania Constitution, Article VII, Section 1. As described below, a person must
certify that he is a U.S. citizen in order to register to vote in Pennsylvania. In this case,
MAHADY SACKO was not a U.S. citizen, lied about being a U.S. citizen in order to register to
vote, and therefore cast a fraudulent ballot under both federal and state law during the November
5, 2024, election for federal office.

6. This Affidavit is intended to show merely that there is sufficient probable cause
for the requested complaint and warrant and does not set forth all my knowledge about this
matter. The facts set forth in this affidavit are based upon my personal observations, my training

and experience, and information obtained from various law enforcement personnel and



Case 2:26-mj-00329 Document 1-1  Filed 02/27/26 Page 3 of 12

witnesses. | have not included each and every fact known to me concerning this investigation.
Additionally, unless otherwise indicated, wherever in this Affidavit I assert that an individual
made a statement, that statement is described in substance herein and is not intended to be a
verbatim recitation of such statement. Furthermore, unless otherwise indicated, all statements
contained in this Affidavit are summaries in substance and in part. The following is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief.
PROBABLE CAUSE

A. Immigration Records

7. According to the Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”’) databases, Mahady
SACKO (DOB: 01/12/1976) is not a U.S. citizen. Rather, he is a native and citizen of
Mauritania. He is assigned alien number A076101515. He entered the United States in March
1998 in Miami, Florida.

8. According to U.S. immigration records, on or about January 12, 1999, SACKO
was served a Notice to Appear (“NTA”), placing him into removal proceedings. On June 14,
2000, an Immigration Judge in Philadelphia, PA ordered SACKO removed from the United
States back to Mauritania. SACKO was present in Immigration Court for this decision. SACKO
appealed the Immigration Judge’s decision to the Board of Immigration Appeals (“BIA”). On
November 14, 2002, the BIA dismissed SACKO’s appeal and affirmed the decision of the
Immigration Judge. However, SACKO did not depart the United States as ordered by the
Immigration Judge.

0. On or about January 12, 2007, SACKO was arrested in Philadelphia, PA by
Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Enforcement and Removal Operations ("ICE/ERO").

However, SACKO did not have a current passport from Mauritania and ICE/ERO was unable to
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obtain one for him. As a result, ICE/ERO was unable to enforce the decision of the Immigration
Judge and remove SACKO from the United States. SACKO was placed on supervision with
ICE/ERO, which required him to regularly report to their office as an alien under an order of
deportation.

10. Under the terms of his alien immigration supervision, SACKO has regularly
reported to ICE/ERO. Since 2011, SACKO reported to ICE/ERO on May 9, 2011, August 29,
2011, January 9, 2012, April 4, 2012, November 7, 2012, November 7, 2013, October 27, 2014,
October 27, 2015, February 13, 2017, February 9, 2018, October 10, 2018, April 19, 2019,
November 22, 2019, December 14, 2020, January 4, 2022, December 14, 2022, June 15, 2023,
September 18, 2024, and September 5, 2025.

B. Voting Records

11. In April 2025, the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Homeland Security
Investigations (HSI) and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) received information that
MAHADY SACKO illegally voted in a federal election and subsequently initiated a criminal
investigation. As described below, there is probable cause to show that SACKO violated federal
criminal law by illegally voting in the November 5, 2024, federal election in violation of 52
U.S.C. § 20511(2)(B). Furthermore, SACKO's illegal conduct in 2024 was not an isolated
incident but a pattern of illegal voting over the years by an alien under active immigration
supervision.

12. In May 2025, the investigators obtained SACKO’s voting records for Philadelphia
County from the Philadelphia City Commissioners (PCCO) and the Pennsylvania Department of
State (DOS) via a subpoena. Both the PCCO and DOS records showed MAHADY SACKO is

an active registered voter in Pennsylvania. According to these records, SACKO initially
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registered to vote on January 24, 2005. His current registration information includes his actual
date of birth, a social security number ending in 5951, a driver's license number ending in 390,
his current phone number, and his home address.! All of this information is consistent with the
actual known biographical information for SACKO. As part of that registration process, the
PCCO and DOS records show that SACKO falsely stated on numerous occasions that he was a
U.S. citizen.

13. PCCO and DOS voting records showed that SACKO voted in the following
federal elections: (1) the 2008 general election, (2) the 2012 general election, (3) the 2016
primary election, (4) the 2016 general election, (5) the 2020 primary election, (6) the 2020
general election, and (7) the 2024 election for federal office. SACKO voted in person for each
of these elections, except for the 2020 primary election, in which he voted by mail. On each
occasion, SACKO falsely represented that he was a U.S. citizen. The PCCO and DOS records
further showed:

a. On August 24, 2006, SACKO completed a paper registration application

to register to vote in Pennsylvania. On that form, SACKO falsely declared that he was a U.S.
citizen. He provided his date of birth and his address as 4013 Green St, 3FL, Philadelphia, PA.

He then signed the form as follows:

I HEREBY DECLARE THAT:

11 |(1)0n the day of the next election 1will have been a United States citizen for
at least one month, I will be at least 18 years of age, and 1 will have
resided in Pennsyivania and in my election district for at least 30 days;

(2)fam k alified to vote.

AND I HEREBY ! Etummumemfomnmrhm provided in this registration

D g tration declaration will be accepted |__

'H" ; and if the registration contains a | Priat Your Name Below W

D 2 pe YO MAIHD

,_1_‘ f;"

1
affiant.

SACKO's full date of birth, driver’s license number, and home address are known to your
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b. On September 8, 2006, SACKO registered to vote in Pennsylvania
through a voter registration drive.> SACKO provided his date of birth and an address of 4013

Green St, Floor 3, Philadelphia, PA. He then signed the form as follows:

Email Addrness-

App Date:  Reg Dale:  Assistance:
090872006 ||09/23/2006 |

C. On November 3, 2008, SACKO registered to vote through the
Pennsylvania Department of Transportation (PennDOT).?> SACKO provided his date of birth, a
social security number ending in 5951, a driver's license number ending in 390, and an address
of' 4013 Green St, Floor 3, Philadelphia, PA. He also noted a previous address of 4312 Chestnut
St, Philadelphia PA 19104.

d. On May 26, 2012, SACKO registered to vote through a paper voter
registration application. On the form, SACKO falsely claimed that he was a U.S. citizen.
SACKO provided his date of birth, a social security number ending in 5951, and an address of

4605 Chester Avenue, #A3, Philadelphia, PA. SACKO then signed the form as follows:

|

X chcke ’Cfrw

Frint Your Mame Below W

Lhcke MAHADY ?f;,gffz,

2 Voter registration drives in Pennsylvania may be conducted on paper or electronically.
Through either process, voters must affirm that they are U.S. citizens in order to register to vote.

3 Voters seeking to register through PennDOT must affirm that they are U.S. citizens.
6
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e. On June 4, 2012, SACKO registered to vote in Pennsylvania through a
voter registration drive. SACKO provided his date of birth, a social security number ending in
5951, and an address of 4605 Chester Avenue, Apt. A3, Philadelphia, PA. He also noted a prior

address of 4013 Green St, Floor 3, Philadelphia, PA. He then signed the form as follows:

[ 1 h:ur.l
.pr[l-.":it: Reg Dale:  Assistance: U I{
[o04/2012 [forroaaniz | o9c A CKE

f. On June 24, 2016, SACKO registered to vote by using a paper voter
registration application. On that form, SACKO falsely claimed that he was a U.S. citizen. He
provided his date of birth, a social security number ending in 5951, and an address of 4605

Chester Ave, Apt. A3, Philadelphia PA. SACKO then signed the form as follows:

77

"

Please sign full name (or put mark) / Firme supombre mrnpletu (0 ponga sumi

RN ETRANZ

Month / Mes Day / Dia Year / Ao

g. On June 29, 2016, SACKO registered to vote in Pennsylvania through a
voter registration drive. SACKO provided his date of birth, a social security number ending in
5951, and an address of 4605 Chester Avenue, Apt. A3, Philadelphia, PA. SACKO then signed

the form as follows:
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Email Address:

wﬂwmﬂ_ae: Reg Date:  Assistance: 2 'Eﬁ - ; »
(6292016 ([07/2272m6 | DO ,

h. On December 28, 2016, SACKO registered to vote through PennDOT.
SACKO provided his date of birth, the same driver's license number ending in 390, a social
security number ending in 5951, and an address of 4135 Westminster Ave, Apt B, Philadelphia,
PA.

1. On April 9, 2019, SACKO registered to vote through PennDOT. SACKO
provided his date of birth, the same driver's license number ending in 390, and his home address.
On the form, he noted that his "old address" was 4135 Westminster Ave, Apt B, Philadelphia,
PA.

J- On September 18, 2020, SACKO completed a paper Pennsylvania Voter
Registration Application. On that application, SACKO falsely certified that he was a U.S.
citizen. SACKO provided a social security number ending in 5951,% his phone number, and his

home address. SACKO then signed and certified the form as follows:

i 1 declare that:

« | am & United States citizen and will have been & citizen for at
least 30 days on the day of the next elaction,

« | will be at least 18 years ¢ld on the day of the oext election.

= 1will have lived at the same addrass in Section 5 for at least—
30 days before the election. ﬂ_" ]

= | am legally gualified to vote. 9 1

| affirm that this information is true. | understand that this

Z  daclaration s the same as an atfidavit, and, if this information a0 ﬁﬁhb{'@_;f&m-’y

Slgnatune or mark 1

"g.!__ s not true. | can be convicted of perjury, and fined up to
¢ 515,000, jzllad for up te seven years, or bath Taday's date

¥

4 On this form, SACKO provided the correct month and day of his birth but provided an
incorrect year for an unknown reason.
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k. On October 14, 2020, SACKO registered to vote in Pennsylvania.
SACKO provided his date of birth, the same social security ending in 5951, his phone number,

and his home address. SACKO then signed the form as follows:

Email Address: P g L
e [ Zymy
Fpp Dale: Reg Dale:  Assistance: 9@ F e li1.-'|- E

10/14/2020 |[10/18/2020  DIC . e e oy

1. Prior to the 2024 election, SACKO registered to vote through PennDOT
on August 1, 2024. As part of that registration process, SACKO again falsely claimed that he
was a U.S. citizen. SACKO provided his date of his birth, the same driver's license number

ending in 390, his phone number, and his home address. SACKO then signed the form as

follows:
Emadl Address: -
| dngert
¥ =
mmmmmmm e ———————— ey I::!'} ]
App Dale:  Heqg Date: 1a"'l.'lasnlsl.ai'avl::-e':: .-ﬂr _t.."J :ﬁ
08/01/2024 |{D8A02/2024 | DI
C. Other Evidence
14.  Based upon my training and experience and my personal observations, I have

compared all the signatures above. All the signatures for MAHADY SACKO pictured above
appear consistent to me. Furthermore, during this investigation, I have obtained additional
signatures for SACKO, including:

a. His 2013 vehicle registration from the Pennsylvania Department of

Transportation:
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Explration Data

JAN 13 2013
028102b679439000L02L0D0

NR28592041E89118-~-001

| CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF LAW THAT ALl COMUWMERCIAL CERTIFICATIONS
AND INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN ARE TRUE AND CORRECT. | HERERY
ACKNOWEDGE THIS DAY THAT [ HAVE RECEVED NOTICE OF THE
PROVISIONS OF SEGTION 3705 OF THE VEHIGLE GODE (SEE ABOVE). /] ]

PRICANt ™ o (o a4 %
Telkephone
w——— (L L VA 78 25 5(

His 2021 vehicle registration from the Pennsylvania Department of

b.

Transportation:

Expiration Date

JAN 31 2021 '
024102k679439090102950

16282-9125-(1494-6-001

I certify under pemalty of law that all infermelion conlained einis bus
and correct. | hereby authorize the Soclal Security Administration to release ta
the Dapartment of Tranzporatinn infarmation concerning my Sacial Sscurity
Identification Number for the purpose of Identification. M using a messenger
service, | hereby authorize the Department 1o furnlsh them with my driving recard
for the purpose of processing this TormuyY ARNING: Misstaternent of fact
IE _ﬂ p T AE is a misdemeanor of the third dEg’EE puf‘.iﬁlﬁ.bl-!‘ h,’ afinen up to
z £2,500 and/or imprisenmem up te 1 year [18Pa, C.8, B0

b o TR
PA 19143 Applicant X Sﬂ(_ ;
Sign Here /
S o) YL 7
c. His 2021 driver's license application from the Pennsylvania Department of
Transportation:

10
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micle LGode. [See reverse 1o provisicns. ) e

FEEI

oAk "’7# ETD

E g {A {7 ) u o WA Rlis

Applicant's Signature in !r.-.i: 2 fDE-FEf bl

SPRoT

BPa £

L wish dor condributee 34604 Lo e Orual Dranation M&s Tiust Fonldl (so dve

d. His 2025 driver's license application from the Pennsylvania Department of
Transportation:
Explration Date

JAN 13 2025
728102L79839000103050

20284920461 74B06-001

1 CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF LAW THAT ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED
HEREIN IS THUE AND COHRECT. WARNINGT: MIGATA ENT OF FACT IS A

MEDEME ANCGR OF THE THIRD DEQHEE FUNISHAR ? ﬁ:ﬂE aF uUpP TO

32,500 AND/OR IMPRISONMENT UP TO 1 YEAR {1 anA004(b))-
Applicant b
Sign Here XS H— C -
‘l.-.I:urlnrw ?_. %
w267\ Gy (0~ = 7
e. Based upon my training and experience and my personal observations, I

believe the signatures pictured above are consistent with the other signatures listed in the
affidavit for SACKO.
CONCLUSION
15. Based on the above facts, there is probable cause to believe MAHADY SACKO
is not a United States citizen, falsely represented himself to be a United States citizen, and
fraudulently voted on November 5, 2024, in an election for federal office, in violation of 52

U.S.C. § 20511(2)(B) (fraudulent voting). Because there is probable cause to authorize a

11
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criminal complaint, I request an arrest warrant and criminal complaint be issued for MAHADY

SACKO.

/s/ Mickel McGann

Mickel McGann

Special Agent

Federal Bureau of Investigation

Affidavit submitted bpigitalibignebattested to me as true and accurate by telephone consistent with
Fed.R. Crim P 4.1 a‘fchldFPng??j) this 27th day of February 2026.
Hey, U.S.M.J.
WCM“( Date:
2026.02.27
12:19:27 -05'00'

Honorable Elizabeth T. Hey
United States Magistrate Judge

12





